Public Document Pack

AGENDA
NOTE: In the case of non-members, this agenda is for information only

Committee

- LICENSING COMMITTEE

Date & Time

-

WEDNESDAY, 30TH JULY, 2014 AT 10.00 AM

Venue

-

NORFOLK ROOM, THE CONFERENCE
SUITE, ELIZABETH HOUSE, DEREHAM

Members of the Committee Persons attending the meeting are
requiring further information, or requested to turn off mobile
with specific questions, are telephones
asked to raise these with the
appropriate officer at least two
working days before the meeting.
If the information requested is
available, this will be provided,
and reported to Committee.

Members:
Mr S.G. Bambridge (Chairman)
Mr J.D. Rogers (Vice-Chairman)
Mrs S Armes
Councillor C Bowes
Mr P R W Darby
Mr T.J. Lamb

Mr K. Martin
Mrs K. Millbank
Mr T F C Monument
Mrs K. Pettitt
Mr F.J. Sharpe
Mrs P.A. Spencer

Member Services
Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke,
Dereham Norfolk, NR19 1EE
Date: Monday, 21 July 2014
Please ask for Julie Britton - telephone (01362) 656343
e-mail: julie.britton@breckland.gov.uk

Licensing Committee
30 July 2014
PART A- ITEMS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC
Page(s)
herewith
1.

MINUTES

1 - 10

To confirm the Minutes of the meetings held on 7 April 2014.
2.

APOLOGIES
To receive apologies for absence.

3.

URGENT BUSINESS
To note whether the Chairman proposes to accept any item as urgent
business, pursuant to Section 100(B)(4)(b) of the Local Government Act,
1972.

4.

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
Members are reminded that under the Code of Conduct they are not to
participate and must leave the room, for the whole of an agenda item to
which they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest.
In the interests of transparency, Members may also wish to declare any
other interests they have in relation to an agenda item, that support the
Nolan principles detailed within the Code of Conduct.

5.

NON-MEMBERS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE MEETING
To note the names of any non-members who wish to address the
meeting.

6.

CASCADE TRAINING SESSION ON “HEARINGS
Verbal report by the Licensing Chairman – “everything you wanted to
know but were afraid to ask”.

7.

TAXI & PRIVATE HIRE LICENSING UPDATE

11 - 14

Report of the Assistant Director for Community.
8.

AMENDMENTS TO THE LICENSING ACT 2003

15 - 17

Report by the Assistant Director for Community.
9.

LICENSING ACT 2003 - NEW MANDATORY CONDITIONS
Report of the Assistant Director for Community.

10.

NEXT MEETING
The next Licensing Committee meeting will be held on Wednesday, 8
October 2014 at 10.00am in the Norfolk Room.
Please ask for Julie Britton - telephone (01362) 656343
e-mail: julie.britton@breckland.gov.uk

18 - 22

Agenda Item 1

BRECKLAND COUNCIL
At a Meeting of the
LICENSING COMMITTEE
Held on Monday, 7 April 2014 at 10.00 am in
Anglia Room, The Conference Suite, Elizabeth House, Dereham
PRESENT
Mr S.G. Bambridge (Chairman)
Mr J.D. Rogers (Vice-Chairman)
Mrs S Armes
Councillor C Bowes
Mr T.J. Lamb

Mr K. Martin
Mrs K. Millbank
Mr F.J. Sharpe
Mrs P.A. Spencer

Also Present
Mrs L.S. Turner

Mr M. A. Wassell

In Attendance
David Lowens
Rowland Wilson
Tiffany Bentley
Julie Britton

-

Solicitor, nplaw
Licensing Manager
Licensing Officer
Senior Committee Officer
Action
By

24/14 MINUTES (AGENDA ITEM 1)
The Minutes of the meeting held on 9 October 2013 were confirmed as a
correct record and signed by the Chairman.
25/14 APOLOGIES (AGENDA ITEM 2)
Apologies for absence were received from Paul Darby, Thomas Monument
and Karen Pettitt.
26/14 NON-MEMBERS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE MEETING (AGENDA ITEM
5)
Lynda Turner and Michael Wassell.
27/14 CONSULTATION ON FEES UNDER THE LICENSING ACT 2003 (AGENDA
ITEM 6)
The Licensing Committee were asked to consider the Home Office
consultation so that an agreed response could be returned to the Home
Office before 10 April 2014.
The Government was committed to cutting red tape within the licensing
regime for responsible businesses. It had recently reduced regulation on live
music and had also brought forward additional proposals for further
1

1

Licensing Committee
7 April 2014
Action
By

deregulation of entertainment, and removing burdens on late night
refreshment providers as well as reducing the burden of the personal licence
holder.
As part of the Government’s proposals to rebalance the Act, it had recognised
that some Licensing Authorities faced significant deficits in carrying out the
licensing function as the fee levels had remained unchanged since the
implementation of the Act in 2005. The current fee regulations prescribed
different fee amounts for grants, variations, and annual fees, which had been
set in bands depending on the non domestic rateable value of a premises.
The Government introduced provisions in the Police & Social Responsibility
Act 2011 to enable locally set fees based on cost recovery. The Government
decided not to continue to set fees centrally as it recognised that costs could
vary and could result in fee payers paying too much in certain areas.
The proposed locally set fees could not be used to raise extra revenue, or
tackle crime but should be based on recovering the costs that an authority
incurred carrying out the licensing function. It was important to make it clear
to the fee payers that locally set fees were set transparently and were based
on a cost recovery basis.
The Government’s intention was not to impose excessive duties or complex
processes that would increase the costs of the licensing system; therefore,
views were being sought on how to create a proportionate system of fees.
Additionally, caps on the levels of each fee were being introduced.
The consultation on fees ran from 13 February 2014 to 10th April 2014 and a
copy of the document had been attached at Appendix A of the agenda.
It was noted that the Government was looking for responses from all Councils
across the country by 10 April 2014 and with this in mind, Tiffany Bentley
(Licensing Officer) had attended a seminar in London and a copy of the
proposed responses had been attached at Appendix B on page 56 of the
agenda.
The Chairman asked if Members had any comments to make on the Home
Office document. Cllr Rogers asked if Breckland Council had been charging
enough to cover its costs. The Licensing Manager advised that it was.
Referring to section 1.5 of the agenda, the Chairman asked if the Council
could in fact set a fee that covered the costs of those people who applied for
a licence but were refused. Members were informed that the fee had to be
reimbursed to the applicant if the licence was refused.
Cllr Lamb reminded Members that the Government was trying to simplify the
whole system but felt that this was a retrograde step in comparison to the
previous system which he felt had been far superior; this had been when all
applications had to go through the Magistrates court. The Chairman said that
the Council was within the system it was in and could not do anything about
it.
Cllr Armes asked if there was any way that the process could be accelerated
so that applications went through much quicker. The Chairman felt that
Breckland Council did deal with applications within a suitable timeline. The
2

2

Licensing Committee
7 April 2014
Action
By

Licensing Manager advised that both Breckland and South Holland were on
par with each other but reminded Members that all Councils had to be guided
by statutory deadlines. Cllr Wassell felt that Breckland Council was very
efficient.
The Chairman mentioned the Hearings that had recently taken place. The
Licensing Officer explained that a great deal of mediation work took place
beforehand and a Hearing was considered to be the last resort.
Referring to Appendix A, the Chairman asked if Members would prefer to go
through the document page by page or whether Members would prefer to go
straight to Appendix B, Breckland Council’s proposed responses. The latter
was agreed.
The consultation document introduced the subject and set each question in
context. Each response was highlighted by the Licensing Manager and the
reasons behind each response were explained.
Consultation Question 1:
Do you agree or disagree that the use of National Non-domestic Rateable
Value bands as a criterion for variable fee amounts should be abandoned?
Response - Agreed
Consultation Question 2:
If you disagree, please provide evidence that higher National Non-domestic
Rateable Value is consistently linked to higher average costs to the licensing
authority within individual licensing authority areas, keeping your views to a
maximum of 200 words.
Response - N/A
Consultation Question 3:
Do you agree or disagree that the criterion of whether or not a premises is
authorised to provide licensable activities to a late terminal hour is linked to
costs?
Response - Agree
Consultation Question 4:
If you agree, please provide evidence for your answer in the box below,
keeping your views to a maximum of 200 words.
Response - Additional costs are incurred due to enforcement work,
which includes late night inspections, dealing with noise and anti social
behaviour complaints .Additional costs are also incurred during a
premises licence application process for a late night hour, through
receipt of representations, mediation / hearings.
Consultation Question 5:
Do you agree or disagree that the criterion of whether or not a premises is
authorised to provide licensable activities to a late terminal hour is sufficiently
practical to implement?
Response - Agree
3

3

Licensing Committee
7 April 2014
Action
By

Consultation Question 6:
If you do not agree, please state your reasons in the box below, keeping your
views to a maximum of 200 words.
Response - N/A
Consultation Question 7:
Do you agree or disagree that the licensing authority should be able to
determine the hours during which the higher fee is payable within the
boundaries of midnight to 6am?
Response - Disagree
Consultation Question 8:
If you disagree, please state the hours during which you think licensing
authorities should be able to determine that a higher fee is payable.
Response – The Council agrees that the licensing authority should be
able to determine the hours during which the higher fee is payable and
the disagreement relates only to timing. 23.00 hours is a more
appropriate time as it corresponds to the public view, previous terminal
hour as recognised by the public, and to tie in with noise nuisance
legislation.
Consultation Question 9:
Do you agree or disagree that licensing authorities that impose higher fees for
premises which open later should have discretion to exclude premises that
are authorised to open late only on certain nights per year?
Response - Agree
Consultation Question 10:
Please state your reasons, keeping your views to a maximum of 200 words.
Response - Licensing Authorities should be able to determine what
premises should be excluded, for example premises that are authorised
to open late only on certain nights of the year, for example Bank
Holidays or New Years Eve.
Consultation Question 11:
Do you agree or disagree that the criterion of whether or not a premises is
used primarily for the sale of alcohol for consumption on the premises is
linked to costs?
Response - Disagree
Consultation Question 12:
Please provide evidence for your answer in the box below, keeping your
views to a maximum of 200 words.
Response - Costs are more linked to late terminal hour, and other
activities such as entertainment and off sales
Consultation Question 13:
4

4

Licensing Committee
7 April 2014
Action
By

Do you agree or disagree that the criterion of whether or not premises are
exclusively or primarily used for the sale of alcohol for consumption on the
premises is sufficiently practical to implement?
Response - Disagree
Consultation Question 14:
If you do not agree, please state your reasons in the box below, keeping your
views to a maximum of 200 words.
Response - It is difficult to define ‘exclusively or primarily’ and could
lead to costly disputes. For example defining whether a petrol station
should be licensed for the sale of alcohol can currently be problematic.
Consultation Question 15:
Do you agree or disagree that there should be discretion to apply higher fee
amounts only where both criteria apply in combination?
Response - Disagree
Consultation Question 16:
Do you agree or disagree that, if a licensing authority has determined that
different fee amounts should apply, it should have discretion to exclude
certain types of premises from that higher fee amount?
Response - Agree
Consultation Question 17:
If discretion to exclude certain types of premises from a higher fee amount
were available, what types of premises should be specified in the regulations
as potentially excluded classes? Please give reasons for your answer,
keeping your views to a maximum of 200 words.
Response - Premises providing overnight accommodation, where the
alcohol is supplied to residents only, for consumption on the premises,
Theatres, where alcohol is supplied to ticket holders in relation to a
relevant production at the premises or people concerned in the
performance only, Cinemas, where alcohol is supplied to ticket holders
in relation to the exhibition of a film at the premises only, and for
example Bingo Halls
Consultation Question 18:
Are there alternative options that should be available to licensing authorities
to apply different fee amounts in their area? Please specify and set out your
evidence in the box below, keeping your views to a maximum of 200 words.
Response - Premises that are located in special policy areas, cumulative
impact areas/zones, as these premises within these areas are usually
used exclusively or primarily for the consumption of alcohol and the
provision of late night regulated entertainment. More enforcement work
is carried out in these areas by licensing authorities.
Consultation Question 19:
Do you agree or disagree that the proposed cap levels will enable your
licensing authority to recover costs?
5

5

Licensing Committee
7 April 2014
Action
By

Response - Agree
Consultation Question 20:
Do you have any other comments on the proposed cap levels? Please
specify them in the box below, keeping your views to a maximum of 200
words.
Response – No comment
Consultation Question 21: (TEN)
Do you agree or disagree that the proposed cap of £100 will enable your
licensing authority to recover costs?
Response - Agree
Consultation Question 22:
Please set evidence for your answer in the box below, keeping your views to
a maximum of 200 words.
Response - The number of TENs that are determined at sub committee
hearings is minimal. Applicants are usually willing to work with
responsible authorities regarding their concerns.
Consultation Question 23:
Do you agree or disagree that licensing authorities be required, before locallyset fees are implemented, to:23a: publish their proposed fee levels?;
23a. Response - Agree
23b: publish the basis on which they have been calculated?
Response - Agree (changed from disagree to agree)
23c: publish the measures they have taken to keep costs down?
Response - Agree (changed from disagree to agree)
23d: invite comments from interested parties?
Response - Disagree
Consultation Question 24:
What practical steps can licensing authorities take to secure efficiency?
Please state and give reasons for your answer in the box below, keeping your
views to a maximum of 200 words.
Response - Increase electronic communication with applicants and
licence holders. Continue with targeted and proportionate enforcement.
Consultation Question 25:
Do you agree or disagree that the Guidance should suggest that these areas
present a particular risk of excessive costs or gold-plating?
Response - Agree
6

6

Licensing Committee
7 April 2014
Action
By

25a: Notification of residents individually of licensing applications in their area
by letter (given that the existing duties to advertise on the premises and on
the licensing authorities’ website enable the involvement of local residents,
and that more cost efficient methods of further engagement may be
available);
Response - Agree
25b: Central re-charges, such as payments from the licensing budget to legal
services or external communications. These should relate to costs actually
incurred in the delivery of functions under the 2003 Act and not, for example,
a standard percentage of central costs.
Response - Agree
25c: The costs of discharging the statutory functions of licensing authorities
that arise under other legislation, such as the duties arising under the
Environmental Protection Act 1990.
Response - Agree
Consultation Question 26:
Do you think that there are other activities that may present a particular risk of
excessive costs or gold-plating? Please state and give reasons for your
answer in the box below, keeping your views to a maximum of 200 words.
Response - General advice and guidance on Licensing Act 2003
applications. Notifications to Members and Parish Councillors and
Town Councils of applications.
Consultation Question 27:
Do you agree or disagree that there should be a single national payment date
for annual fees in England and Wales?
Response - Disagree
Consultation Question 28:
Do you think that the Impact Assessments related to the consultation provide
an accurate representation of the costs and benefits of the proposal to move
to locally-set fees (including, in particular, the costs of setting fees locally)?
Response - Don't know
Consultation Question 29:
Do you have any comments on the methodologies or assumptions used in
the impact assessment? If so, please detail them in the box below,
referencing the page in the impact assessment to which you refer. Please
keep your views to a maximum of 200 words.
Response - None
In relation to question 4, Cllr Lamb asked if the extra work was due to
complaints, and if these complaints were found to be groundless, would the
applicant have to pay extra costs. The Chairman advised that if there were
7

7

Licensing Committee
7 April 2014
Action
By

grounds for the complaints the licence would automatically have to be
reviewed. The Licensing Officer explained that checks would be carried out
in the first instance to ensure that the complaints were valid and would be
included as an objection if validity was found; a penalty would not be applied
to the applicant.
Cllr Millbank asked why question 7 had been marked as disagreed. The
Licensing Officer explained that although the question had been quite difficult
to understand, it was the start time of midnight that they had not agreed with
and felt that it should have been earlier. The Chairman believed that the
Council should be able to set a charge from 2300hrs. Cllr Spencer felt that if
the Licensee was asking for extra hours, the Licensing Committee must have
an input. She felt that matters such as these had always been a bone of
contention. The Licensing Officer explained that the applicant would not be
expected to pay a fee; however, more complaints/issues were received when
premises opened later. Cllr Wassell felt that the answer should be more
explicit to the question and explained that the Licensing Officers were
disagreeing with the timing – it should be from 2300hrs not midnight.
Cllr Lamb said that the new regulations that had been bought in previously
had been to liberalise the timings across the country; 24 hour opening had
been the aim; however, now it seemed that it was being suggested to revert
back to the original regime. The Chairman pointed out that a Licensing
Authority could not unreasonably restrict the opening hours and mentioned
the fact that the last three Hearings heard by the Committee Members had
found it very difficult to make decisions that were considered fair for
everyone. Cllr Rogers was convinced that the Government had announced
that it would be making allowances on opening times during the World Cup.
In response, the Chairman asked if this meant that more premises would be
able to remain open past its normal licensing hours. The Licensing Manager
explained that all licensed premises that remained open beyond 1am would
have to apply for a Temporary Event Notice (TEN). He did point out;
however, that the opening time allowance was only for England games. The
Licensing Officer reminded the Committee that such allowances had been
made for the Queens Jubilee and the Royal Wedding. In terms of fees, there
would not be any change as long as the application met with the criteria and
all would be subject to normal controls such as noise nuisance etc. Cllr
Rogers asked if the Council had the same powers as the Police. In response
the Chairman said that it did not, however, Members were able to review the
licence if complaints had been received.
The Chairman asked the
Committee to concentrate on the subject matter being discussed which was
the fees.
Referring to question 10, Cllr Armes asked how village halls fitted into this
criteria and also asked about the Carnegie Rooms in Thetford being a public
hall. Members were informed that the majority of village halls did not have
alcohol licences and therefore would have to apply for a TEN. In response to
the latter question, the Licensing Officer advised that the Carnegie Rooms
was licensed until 1am. This particular question was non standard and
therefore if it was for a permanent permission on a licence the applicant
would be charged more. Cllr Lamb asked if an applicant indicated that they
wanted to open beyond 11pm would the additional fee be added to the
licence, and if it was occasional he presumed that the applicant would not
have to pay any extra on top of their annual licence. Members were informed
that this was correct. Cllr Armes hoped that all villages etc and Town
8

8

Licensing Committee
7 April 2014
Action
By

Councils would have this notification spelt out to them for clarity. The
Licensing Manager stated that information would be sent out once the
consultation responses had been received by Government and when the new
legalisation came into force.
In relation to question 17, the Chairman asked if this would apply to village
halls and premises under a TEN. Members were informed that if it was
operating for example as a cinema then it would. Cllr Armes asked what the
outcome would be if someone charged an entrance fee that included a free
glass of wine or visa versa. The Licensing Manager said that he would speak
to the Member after the meeting. Cllr Lamb asked if a hotel guest could
demand a drink after hours. Members were informed that it would be at the
Licence Holder’s discretion.
The Chairman felt that cumulative impact zones under question 18 should be
kept in mind for a future discussion.
In relation to question 21, the Chairman asked what would happen if a person
applied for a TEN every month of the year. The Licensing Officer explained
that licensing authorities had little control in relation to TENs unlike a
premises licence. The Licensing Manager referred to the £100 cap and said
that it was unlikely that Breckland Council would have anything near to that.
It was highlighted that the current charging price was £21. The Chairman
said that he had never heard of any objections to a TEN. Members were
informed that this was due to the Licensing Team working very closely with
the Police.
Referring to question 23b, Cllr Millbank asked why the response had been
marked as disagreed as she felt that proposed increases to fee levels on the
basis that they had been calculated should be published. Members were
informed that there was too much detail involved. The Chairman reminded
Members that when the fees were calculated a report had to be prepared and
published on an agenda for the Licensing Committee which was a public
document. Cllr Wassell asked if a link could be put on the website directing
the public to the Minutes once the meeting had been convened. He felt the
same about question 23c. The Licensing Officer explained that this was
about the level of detail as there were certain matters that could be classed
as enforcement issues and she would rather not have this information in the
public domain. Cllr Millbank agreed with the link to the Minutes option.
It was agreed that questions 23b and 23c be changed from disagree to
agree. Mr Lowens, the Council’s Solicitor reminded Members that this could
open the Licensing Team up to a great deal more administration. The
Licensing Officer reported that the questions in relation to cost recovery did
form a large part of the discussion at the Home Office. Cllr Turner said that
the key statement should be to remind the public that this was just a cost
recovery exercise and that the Council was not allowed to make money from
fees. Cllr Sharpe asked what would be published under 23c now that the
response had been changed. It was agreed that a simple statement would
be published. The Chairman reminded Members of the Committee process
that the fees would have to go through.
Under 23d, it was suggested that the question itself should be changed from
‘invite’ to ‘accept’. Members were informed that the questions could not be
changed.
9

9

Licensing Committee
7 April 2014
Action
By

Referring to question 24, the Chairman asked how many electronic
applications were received. It was noted that such applications were less
than 10% mainly from the larger organisations. Cllr Wassell asked if there
were any differences in costs in relation to paper and electronic applications
and payments. Members were informed that it did save the Council money in
the long run.
Cllr Lamb asked for the rationale behind question 27. The Licensing
Manager explained that it would be very difficult to agree one date; at the
moment each individual premise licence was issued from the date it was
applied. If this single national payment date came into effect it would put a lot
of strain on the Officers. The Licensing Officer pointed out that there was
nothing to prevent an applicant paying their whole fee upfront before the
payment due date. Members were informed that this would be something that
would be looked at in the future. The Chairman said that if someone did not
pay their renewal fee on time the licence would automatically be suspended
which had worked well in the past. He preferred to keep it as it was on a
rolling/monthly basis. Cllr Martin asked if there was a time limit if someone
did not pay their fee on time. The Licensing Manager advised that there was
a statutory deadline in place and the process was explained.
The Chairman asked Members if they had any further comments to make.
Cllr Sharpe asked about timelines for implementation. Members were
informed that the timeline was unknown at this present time. Cllr Armes
asked about the proposed de-regulations. The Licensing Manager explained
that further deregulations were anticipated in May. In relation to VAT on
alcohol, letters had been sent out to 800 premises; however, at 5.30pm on 4
April, the Government then issued a statement informing all licensing
authorities that the deregulation of VAT on alcohol was not now being
implemented.
Once again Cllr Lamb expressed his dismay about the claims from
Government that these reforms would be simplified which, in his opinion,
were clearly not.
RESOLVED that a formal response be sent to the Home Office providing
answers to the questions posed with the consultation, and that this (as
above) be the response from Breckland Council.
Following further discussions about other Licensing matters it was agreed
that the next meeting of the Licensing Committee scheduled for 30 April 2014
be cancelled.
The meeting closed at 11.15 am

CHAIRMAN

10

10

Agenda Item 7

BRECKLAND COUNCIL
Report of:

Assistant Director Community – Rob Walker

To:

Licensing Committee 30th July 2014

(Author:

Tiffany Bentley – Licensing Officer)

Subject:

Taxi & Private Hire Licensing Update

Purpose:

To provide an update on the proposed legislative changes

Recommendation(s):
That members note the proposed legislative changes in the Deregulation Bill and the content
of the draft Taxis & Private Hire Vehicles Bill.

1.0

BACKGROUND

1.1

At the request of the Department for Transport, the Law Commission carried out a project
on reforming taxi and private hire law. A consultation paper was produced in 2012 to which
there were over 3000 responses. The Law Commission produced their final report,
recommendations and a draft bill (Taxis & Private Hire Vehicles Bill) in May 2014. The aim
of the consultation was to examine how the complex, fragmented and aged pieces of
legislation could be made fit for modern purposes.

1.2

The following is a summary of the proposals contained in the draft Taxis & Private Hire
Vehicles Bill:
•

Taxi and private hire licensing will remain a licensing authority function. There will
bean internal appeal process against decisions to refuse / suspend etc which would
then be followed by appeals to the magistrates’ court. There will also be a
mechanism to challenge policy in the County Court (as opposed to the existing
judicial review system in the High Court). There will be new powers for licensing
authorities to create and modify taxi zones.

•

The 2 tier system will be retained (to be called taxis and private hire vehicles) with
taxis able to take ‘there and then’ hirings in their own districts but private hire
vehicles prohibited from doing the same.

•

Private hire dispatchers will require licensing to send the vehicle and driver but
those who advertise and accept bookings will not.

•

Private hire drivers and vehicles licensed anywhere will be able to work for any
private hire dispatcher (permitting a mix and match of licensing authorities).

•

A national minimum standard is proposed for private hire vehicles and taxis (to be
set by regulations). There would be the possibility of higher / additional standards
for taxis (to be set locally). There would be basic national standards for drivers and
dispatchers and all application forms would be prescribed by regulations.

11

•

Quantity restrictions would remain possible but based on the test of public interest
(as opposed to the current test of unmet demand).

•

There will be a duty for drivers to stop when hailed (if applied by the licensing
authority).

•

Licensing officers will have powers to stop and inspect vehicles and issue fixed
penalty notices irrespective of where the vehicle is licensed.

•

It is proposed that standard drivers’ licences would last for 3 years, vehicle licences
for 1 year and dispatchers’ licences to run for 5 years with shorter periods possible if
deemed appropriate.

1.3

The full report and draft bill can be viewed by following the link in the Background Papers
section of this report.

1.4

The Department for Transport made the following statement to Parliament in May 2014
‘the government has no plans to introduce a dedicated taxi bill in the final
Parliamentary session. Instead, government will consider the detailed findings of,
and recommendations made, by the Law Commission before setting out our
thinking on each in due course. Given that there will be no dedicated taxi bill this
Parliament, the measures which the government intends to take forward within the
Deregulation Bill represent an ideal opportunity to make a real-world difference to
the businessmen and women who make up the taxi and private hire vehicle trades’.
It is worth noting that if there was a change of government after the next general election
there could be further delays to the passage of the Taxis & Private Hire Vehicles Bill.

1.5

The Deregulation Bill is with the House of Lords for consideration having completed all
stages of readings and committees in the House of Commons. A commencement date is
not yet known. The Bill can be viewed by following the link in the Background Papers
section of this report.

1.6

The Deregulation Bill contains 3 clauses related to taxis and private hire vehicles.

1.7

Clause 10 relates to private hire vehicles and the circumstances in which a driver’s licence
is required. Under the current legislation, it is an offence under the Local Government
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 for an unlicensed driver to drive a licensed private hire
vehicle. The Deregulation Bill proposes to alter this by permitting leisure use of private hire
vehicles by an unlicensed driver. However, the Bill states that if a vehicle is being used as a
private hire vehicle, being used on the road and for carrying passengers an offence is still
committed by an unlicensed driver. The usual burden of proof is reversed so the driver has
to prove that the vehicle was not being used as a private hire vehicle. It is worth noting that
this situation already applies in London.

1.8

Clause 11 of the Bill again amends the current Local Government (Miscellaneous
Provisions) Act 1976 in relation to the duration of licences. A standard duration of 3 years
for taxi and private hire driver licences is proposed. Breckland Council already issues these
licences for this duration. Clause 11 also establishes a standard duration of 5 years for a
private hire vehicle operator licence. Shorter periods may be granted for all licences but
only in individual circumstances not as a blanket policy. Breckland’s current standard
duration is 3 years.

12

1.9

Clause 12 relates to sub-contracting of private hire vehicles. Currently the Local
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 only permits sub-contracting of private
hire vehicle bookings to another operator licensed by the same council. The proposal is to
allow sub-contracts to operators licensed by other local authorities.

2.0

OPTIONS

2.1

That members note the proposed legislative changes in the Deregulation Bill and the
content of the draft Taxis & Private Hire Vehicles Bill.

3.0

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

Legislative changes will apply to the Breckland Council district.

4.0

EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1

N/A

5.0

IMPLICATIONS

5.1

Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues

5.1.1

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.2

Constitution & Legal

5.2.1

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications until dates are known.

5.3

Contracts

5.3.1

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.4

Corporate Priorities

5.4.1

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.5

Crime and Disorder

5.5.1

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.6

Equality and Diversity / Human Rights

5.6.1

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.7

Financial

5.7.1

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.8

Risk Management

5.8.1

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.9

Staffing

5.9.1

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

13

5.10

Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales

5.10.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.
6.0

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1

All

Background papers:The Law Commission Report on Taxi & Private Hire Services and the draft Taxis & Private Hire
Vehicles Bill:
http://lawcommission.justice.gov.uk/docs/lc347_taxi-and-private-hire-services.pdf
Deregulation Bill: http://www.publications.parliament.uk/pa/bills/lbill/2014-2015/0033/15033.pdf

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Tiffany Bentley – Licensing Officer
Telephone Number: 01362 656371
Email: tiffany.bentley@breckland.gov.uk
Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting Name and Post: Tiffany Bentley – Licensing
Officer
Key Decision: No
Exempt Decision: No

14

Agenda Item 8

BRECKLAND COUNCIL
Report of:

Assistant Director Community – Rob Walker

To:

Licensing Committee 30th July 2014

(Author:

Tiffany Bentley – Licensing Officer)

Subject:

Amendments to the Licensing Act 2003

Purpose:

To advise on proposed changes to the Licensing Act 2003 made by the
Deregulation Bill.

Recommendation(s):
That members note the proposed legislative changes to the Licensing Act 2003 made by the
Deregulation Bill.

1.0

BACKGROUND

1.1

The Deregulation Bill is with the House of Lords for consideration having completed all
stages of readings and committees in the House of Commons. A commencement date is
not yet known. The Bill can be viewed by following the link in the Background Papers
section of this report. The Deregulation Bill contains 7 clauses which would amend the
Licensing Act 2003.

1.2

Clause 52 introduces CANs (Community & Ancillary Sellers Notices) which are 36 month
permissions for alcohol sales only, for consumption on the premises only provided the sales
are ancillary to a community event or business. This would only be for up to 300 people
between 7am and 11pm and a fee will be payable. Regulations would be made to provide
more detail on these proposals.

1.3

Clause 53 of the Deregulation Bill proposes an increase on the annual limit of Temporary
Event Notices (TENs) per premises from 12 to 15.

1.4

Clause 54 of the Bill abolishes the requirement to renew personal licences issued under the
Licensing Act 2003. Currently personal licences are issued for a period of 10 years with the
first Breckland licences due for renewal in March 2015. However there have been hints that
the regulations for this abolishment would not be available until April 2015.

1.5

Clause 55 proposes to allow the sale of liqueur confectionary to under 16’s which is
currently an offence.

1.6

Clause 56 proposes introducing a local discretion to exempt areas or types of business
from requiring a licence for late night refreshment (the provision of hot food or drink
between the hours of 11pm and 5am). Regulations will provide more details.

1.7

Clause 57 removes the requirement to report lost or stolen licences to the police.

1.8

Clause 58 proposes to remove community film shows from within the current definition of
regulated entertainment. This would mean that not for profit film shows to fewer than 500

15

people between the hours of 8am and 11pm would not require a licence. Regulations will
again provide more details on this.
2.0

OPTIONS

2.1

That members note the proposed amendments to the Licensing Act 2003 by the
Deregulation Bill.

3.0

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

Legislative changes will apply within the Breckland Council district.

4.0

EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1

N/A

5.0

IMPLICATIONS

5.1

Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues

5.1.1

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.2

Constitution & Legal

5.2.1

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.3

Contracts

5.3.1

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.4

Corporate Priorities

5.4.1

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.5

Crime and Disorder

5.5.1

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.6

Equality and Diversity / Human Rights

5.6.1

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.7

Financial

5.7.1

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.8

Risk Management

5.8.1

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.9

Staffing

5.9.1

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.10

Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales

16

5.10.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.
6.0

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1

All

Background papers:Deregulation Bill: http://www.publications.parliament.uk/pa/bills/lbill/2014-2015/0033/15033.pdf

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Tiffany Bentley – Licensing Officer
Telephone Number: 01362 656371
Email: tiffany.bentley@breckland.gov.uk
Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting Name and Post: Tiffany Bentley – Licensing
Officer
Key Decision: No
Exempt Decision: No

17

Agenda Item 9

BRECKLAND COUNCIL
Report of:

Assistant Director Community – Rob Walker

To:

Licensing Committee 30th July 2014

(Author:

Tiffany Bentley – Licensing Officer)

Subject:

Licensing Act 2003 – new Mandatory Conditions

Purpose:

To advise on changes to the provisions of Licensing Act 2003 via new
Mandatory Conditions.

Recommendation(s):
That members note the proposed legislative changes to the Mandatory Conditions under the
Licensing Act 2003.

1.0

BACKGROUND

1.1

A draft amendment order, the Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory Licensing Conditions)
(Amendment) Order 2014, has been published that will bring into effect amendments to the
Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory Licensing Conditions) Order 2010. The 2010 order
introduced a number of mandatory licence conditions, applicable to premises licences and
club certificates, that banned certain drinks games and promotions, required premises to
make free tap water available to customers, made age verification policies mandatory and
introduced the requirement to make alcohol available in smaller measures.

1.2

The new Mandatory Conditions are scheduled to come into force on 1st October 2014.
The proposed conditions can be viewed by following the link in the Background Papers
section of this report. A summary of the changes is attached as Appendix A to this report.

1.3

These new Mandatory Conditions are in addition to that original conditions still in force from
the Licensing Act 2003 and the Mandatory Condition relating to “permitted price” (the level
of alcohol duty plus VAT below which alcohol cannot be sold or supplied) which came into
force on 28th May 2014.

2.0

OPTIONS

2.1

That members note the proposed amendments to the Mandatory Conditions under the
Licensing Act 2003.

3.0

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

Legislative changes will apply to premises and clubs within the Breckland Council district.

4.0

EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1

N/A

5.0

IMPLICATIONS

18

5.1

Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues

5.1.1

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.2

Constitution & Legal

5.2.1

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.3

Contracts

5.3.1

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.4

Corporate Priorities

5.4.1

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.5

Crime and Disorder

5.5.1

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.6

Equality and Diversity / Human Rights

5.6.1

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.7

Financial

5.7.1

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.8

Risk Management

5.8.1

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.9

Staffing

5.9.1

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.10

Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales

5.10.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.
6.0

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1

All

Background papers:Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory Licensing Conditions) (Amendment) Order 2014:
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2014/1252/introduction/made

19

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Tiffany Bentley – Licensing Officer
Telephone Number: 01362 656371
Email: tiffany.bentley@breckland.gov.uk
Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting Name and Post: Tiffany Bentley – Licensing
Officer
Key Decision: No
Exempt Decision: No
Appendices:
Appendix A – Summary of changes to Mandatory Conditions under the Licensing Act 2003

20

APPENDIX A
2014 Draft Order (amendments proposed highlighted)
Schedule 1(1) "The responsible person must ensure (as opposed to shall take all reasonable
steps) that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible
promotions in relation to the premises."
Schedule 1(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the
following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the
sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises in a manner which carries a significant
risk of leading or contributing to crime and disorder, prejudice to public safety, public nuisance, or
harm to childrenSchedule 1(2)(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or
discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which
carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective (words added);
Schedule 1(2)(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage
or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner
which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective (words added);
Schedule 1(2) The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on
request to customers where it is reasonably available.
Schedule 1(3) (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age
verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.
(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that
the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification
policy.(New words added)
(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years
of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being
served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either(a) a holographic mark, or
(b) an ultraviolet feature.
Schedule 1(4) The responsible person must ensure that(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises
(other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or
supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the following measures(i) beer or cider: ½ pint;
(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and
(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml;

21

(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is
available to customers on the premises; and
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol
to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available." These new words
replace the previous "customers are made aware of the availability of these measures)

22

